
 

Page 1 of 6 

  City of Gardner, Massachusetts 
Office of the City Council 

~~~~~~~ 
CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING 

of 
TUESDAY, APRIL 16, 2024 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 
7:30 P.M. 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS  

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS 
 
III. OPENING PRAYER 

 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 V. ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS 
 

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting.  Any person 
intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith.  All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in 
duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes. 

 
VI. READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S) 

• January 2, 2024, Regular Meeting 
• January 16, 2024, Regular Meeting 
• January 16, 2024, Joint Public Hearing with Planning Board 
• February 5, 2024, Regular Meeting 
• February 20, 2024, Informal Meeting 

  
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 
11255 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Vincent Pusateri, to the 

position of Assistant City Solicitor, for term expiring January 1, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee) 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
11252 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the 2024 Capital Improvement 

Plan (Finance Committee) 
 

 



 

Page 2 of 6 

11253 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the FY2023 Federal Audit 
Report (Finance Committee) 

 
IX. PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
 

11254 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 
Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets” – Central Street (Safety Committee) 

 
11256 – A Resolution to Rename the City Council Chamber "The Ronald F. Cormier 

Council Chamber." (Submitted by Councillor Judy Mack) 
 
X. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES   
 
 FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 11212 – Election of the City Clerk. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance 

Committee 3/18/2024: More Time 4/1/2024) 
 

11214 – An Order Transferring $42,000.00 from Building Clerk Salaries and Wages to 
Operating Expenditures. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance 
Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
11215 – An Order Appropriating $212,510.00 from Free Cash to the Police 

Department New Vehicles Account. (In the City Council and Referred to 
Finance Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
11216 – An Order Appropriating $40,000.00 from Free Cash to Public Works – Tree 

Removal Account. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance Committee 
4/1/2024) 

 
11236 – An Order appropriating $390,000.00 from Water Enterprise Surplus to the 

Repairs to Transmission Main Account (In the City Council and Referred to 
Finance Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
11237 – An Order appropriating $75,000.00 from Water Enterprise Surplus to the 

Repairs to Watermains Account (In the City Council and Referred to Finance 
Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
11238 – An Order appropriating $140,000.00 from Sewer Enterprise Surplus to 

Chemical Treatment Account (In the City Council and Referred to Finance 
Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
11239 – An Order appropriating $75,000.00 from Free Cash to Energy and Utilities 

City Owned Properties Account (In the City Council and Referred to Finance 
Committee 4/1/2024) 

 



 

Page 3 of 6 

11217 – A Measure to Establish a Special Reserve Fund for the Opioid Settlement 
under MGL Ch. 44, §53. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance 
Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
11218 – A Measure to approve an easement from Christof Chartier to the City of 

Gardner for the purpose of snow storage on Rock Street. (In the City Council 
and Referred to Finance Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
11219 – A Measure to rescind the acceptance of Civil Service for the Members of the 

Gardner Police Department, as adopted by the town of Gardner on March 4, 
1912. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
11243 – A Measure confirming the Order of Taking for 94 Pleasant Street as voted on 

by the City Council on August 1, 2022 (In the City Council and Referred to 
Finance Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
11244 – A Measure declaring the air rights of the Knowlton Street Parking Lot as 

surplus for the purpose of leasing to a solar photovoltaic canopy array (In the 
City Council and Referred to Finance Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
11245 – A Measure declaring the roof of the Department of Public Works 

Administration Building, located at 50 Manca Drive, as surplus for the 
purpose of leasing to a solar photovoltaic array (In the City Council and 
Referred to Finance Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
11246 – A Measure declaring the roof of the Department of Public Works Cold 

Storage Building, located at 50 Manca Drive, as surplus for the purpose of 
leasing to a solar photovoltaic array (In the City Council and Referred to 
Finance Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
11247 – A Measure declaring the roof of Gardner City Hall, located at 95 Pleasant 

Street, as surplus for the purpose of leasing to a solar photovoltaic array (In 
the City Council and Referred to Finance Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
11248 – A Measure declaring the roof of the Waterford Community Center, located at 

62 Waterford Street, as surplus for the purpose of leasing to a solar 
photovoltaic array (In the City Council and Referred to Finance Committee 
4/1/2024) 

 
11249 – A Measure declaring the roof of the Department of Public Works Garage 

Buildings, located at 416 West Broadway, as surplus for the purpose of 
leasing to a solar photovoltaic array (In the City Council and Referred to 
Finance Committee 4/1/2024) 

 
 
 



 

Page 4 of 6 

11250 – A Measure declaring the roof of the Gardner Fire Department Headquarters, 
located at 70 City Hall Avenue, as surplus for the purpose of leasing to a solar 
photovoltaic array (In the City Council and Referred to Finance Committee 
4/1/2024) 

 
APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 

11127 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Thomas Zuppa, to the 
position of Building Commissioner, for term expiring January 9, 2027. (In the 
City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 
11139 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Bettez, to the 

position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In 
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 
11140 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Swartz, to the 

position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In 
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 
11141 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Stephen Cormier, to the 

position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In 
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 
11142 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Charles LeBlanc, to the 

position of Board of Assessors, for term expiring January 4, 2027 (In the City 
Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 
11143 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Rick Germano, to the 

position of Local Inspector, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In the City 
Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 
11144 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of James E. Imprescia, to 

the position of Plumbing & Gas Inspector, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
(In the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 
11150 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Timothy Horrigan, to the 

position of Redevelopment Authority, for term expiring January 8, 2027. (In 
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 
11207 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Linda Dembek, to the 

position of Disability Commission Member, for term expiring March 4, 2027. 
(In the City Council and Referred Appointments Committee 3/18/2024) 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 5 of 6 

SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
11086 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 

Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets” – Comee Street. (In the City Council and Referred to the 
Public Safety Committee 11/6/2023; More Time 11/20/2023, 12/4/2023, 
12/18/2023, 1/2/2024, 1/16/2024, 2/5/2024, 2/20/2024, 3/4/2024, 3/18/2024, 
4/1/2024) 

 
11115 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 

Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets.” – Douglas Road. (In the City Council & Referred to Safety 
Committee 12/18/2023; More Time 1/2/2024, 1/16/2024, 2/5/2024, 2/20/2024, 
3/4/2024, 3/18/2024, 4/1/2024) 

 
11204 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 

Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets” – Edgell Street, from Elm Street to Lawrence Street. (More 
Time 3/18/2024, 4/1/2024) 

  
 WELFARE COMMITTEE 
 

11211 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, to add a new 
Chapter 15 to be entitled “Agricultural Commission.” (In the City Council 
and Referred to Welfare Committee 3/18/2024; More Time 4/1/2024) 

 
XI.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 

11220 – A Communication from the Mayor regarding the Non-Union Salary Study. 
(In the City Council and Referred to Committee of the Whole 4/1/2024) 

 
11232 – A Measure to Adopt Local Option Room Occupancy Excise Rate Increase 

Under MGL 64G, Sec. 3A. (Submitted by Councillor Paul G. Tassone; In the 
City Council and Referred to Committee of the Whole 4/1/2024) 

 
11233 – A Measure to Adopt Local Option Sales Tax on Meals Under MGL. 64L, 

SEC 2(a). (Submitted by Councillor Paul G. Tassone; In the City Council and 
Referred to Committee of the Whole 4/1/2024) 

 
11234 – A Resolution to Review the City’s Zoning Map for Accuracy. (Submitted by 

Councillor Paul G. Tassone; In the City Council and Referred to Committee 
of the Whole 4/1/2024) 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 6 of 6 

XII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
XIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS AND REMARKS 
 
XIV. CLOSING PRAYER 
 
XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
  
 

Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting.  Not all items listed 
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 2, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City 
Hall, on Tuesday evening, January 2, 2024.  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Ten (10) Councillors were present 
including Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz 
and George Tyros.  Councillor-elect Carolyn Kamuda was absent.  
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE OF OATH OF OFFICE TO THOSE NOT PRESENT ON JANUARY 1, 
2024 

 
Clerk Siriphan administered the oath of office to Councillor-elect Elizabeth J. Kazinskas and 
George C. Tyros. 

ELECTION OF THE COUNCIL PRESIDENT 
 

The City Clerk announced that nominations were in order for election of Council President 
for the year 2024, in accordance with Section 5 of the Charter of the City of Gardner. 
 
Councillor Elizabeth Kazinskas announced that she would recuse herself on advice from the 
State Ethics Commission “as candidates [for Council President] are not allowed to vote for 
themselves.” She removed herself from the meeting participation. 
 

The Clerk announced that nominations were in order for election of Council President for the 
year 2024. 
 
Councillor Dana Heath nominated Councillor Elizabeth Kazinskas. 
 

Councillor Paul Tassone seconded the nomination of Councillor Kazinskas. 
 
There being no further nominations, the City Clerk entertained a motion to close 
nominations. 
 

On a motion by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
it was voted viva voce, nine (9) yeas, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George 
Tyros, to close nominations. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 2, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

On call of the roll: 
 

Councillor Craig R. Cormier voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor Ronald F. Cormier voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor Aleksander H. Dernalowicz voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor Karen G. Hardern voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor Dana M. Heath ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor Elizabeth J. Kazinskas ABSTAINED 
Councillor Judy A. Mack voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor Paul G. Tassone voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor David Thibault-Muñoz voting ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor George C. Tyros voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
 

 

Having received nine (9) votes, Councillor Elizabeth J. Kazinskas was declared elected Council 
President. Councillors applauded and extended personal congratulations.  
 

President Kazinskas assumed the Chair and expressed appreciation to his colleagues for 
electing him to the Council Presidency.  
 
 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Walsh led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 
 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording and Public 
Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session 
of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of equipment used so as 
not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending to make such 
recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at 
the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of the meeting 
minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 
 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 2, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

READING & ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to waive the 
reading and accept the MINUTES of November 20, 2023, Regular Meeting. 
 

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
#11116 
On a motion by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer the 
following Measure to the Public Safet Committee for study and report, an Application for 
Motor Vehicle Dealers License, Class II, Gardner Five Star Auto Sales, 407 Chestnut Street. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
#11086 
Councillor Craig Cormier informed the Council that since there is no Safety Committee at 
the moment and that this item is still under testing with the Police Department, he requested 
MORE TIME on An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 
Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on Certain Streets” – 
Comee Street. 
 
There were no objections, more time was granted. 
 
#11115 
Councillor Craig Cormier informed the Council that the Safety Committee has not met and 
requested MORE TIME on An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 
600, Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on Certain 
Streets.” – Douglas Road. 
 
There were no objections, more time was granted. 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 2, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

UNFINISTHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 

#11112 
President Kazinskas informed the Council that this item is with the Planning Board. There is 
a joint public hearing scheduled for Monday, January 16th at 6:45 p.m. The President 
requested MORE TIME on – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, 
Chapter 675 thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses. 
 
There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 
#11113 
President Kazinskas informed the Council that this item is with the Planning Board. There is 
a joint public hearing scheduled for Monday, January 16th at 6:45 p.m. The President 
requested MORE TIME on – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, 
Chapter 675 thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana 
Establishments” to Change the Method to Increase the Quota Allowed by the Code of the 
City of Gardner. 
 
There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS AND REMARKS 
 
Councillor Mack would like to express her sincere condolences to the loss of Irene 
Dubzinski. She served on the Gardner Housing Authority for 32 years and on the committee 
to build the new Gardner High School in 1976. She is the wife of Walter J. Dubzinski, a 
longtime principal and football coach at Gardner High School. Mrs. Dubzinski supported all 
things Gardner and especially Gardner High School. Councillor Mack requests a letter of 
condolences be sent to the family. 
 
On a motion made by Councillor Mack, and seconded by Councillor Tassone, it was voted 
viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Craig Cormier, 
Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul 
Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to send a letter of condolences to the 
Dubzinski family. 
 
Councillor Craig Cormier would like to welcome the newest member to the City Council, 
Councillor David Thibault-Muñoz and wish him well and good luck. He can reach anyone 
with any question. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 2, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

President Kazinskas would like to wish everyone a happy new year and looking forward to 
2024 and welcome our new Councillors as well. 
 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion by Councillor Paul Tassone and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was 
voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Craig Cormier, 
Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul 
Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to adjourn at 7:42 p.m. 
 
 

Accepted by the City Council:   



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City 
Hall, on Tuesday evening, January 16, 2024.  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Council President Elizabeth Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Nine (9) Councillors were present 
including Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George 
Tyros.   
 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Walsh led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 
 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording and Public 
Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session 
of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of equipment used so as 
not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending to make such 
recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at 
the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of the meeting 
minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 
 

READING & ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor David 
Thibault-Muñoz, it was voted viva voce, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to waive the reading and 
accept the MINUTES of January 4, 2024, Inaugural Minutes. 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11171 
A Notice from the City Clerk Relative to a Vacancy in the Position of Councillor at Large, 
was taken out of order.  
 
On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, 
it was voted viva voce, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Craig 
Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul 
Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to fill the vacancy for Councillor at 
Large. 
 

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION 
 
Councillor Calvin D. Brooks 
147 Elm Street 
Gardner, MA  01440 
 
Dear Councillor Brooks: 
 
At a legal meeting of the inhabitants of the City qualified to vote in elections held in their 
Wards on Tuesday, the 7th day of November 2023, and per the provisions of the City Charter 
you were elected Councillor at Large for Two Years beginning the Tuesday, January 16, 
2024. 
 
Accordingly, as prescribed by the Charter of the City of Gardner, the Oath of Office for the 
faithful perfomance of duties will be administered on TUESDAY, the 16TH Day of  
JANUARY, 2024 at 7:30 P.M. in the City Council Chamber.   
 
       Very truly yours, 
       TITI SIRIPHAN 

City Clerk  
 
A brief recess was taken 7:33 p.m. for the City Clerk to administer the oath of office to 
Calvin D. Brooks. 
 
Meeting resumed, 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
ORDERS 

#11118 
On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, An Order Authorizing $106.24 Payment of 
Prior Year Salary Expenditure. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
APPOINTMENTS 

#11124 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Alan Agnelli, to the position of Historical Commission Member, for term 
expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11125 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Barbara LeBlanc, to the position of Council on Aging Member, for term 
expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11126 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Tammy Erdman, to the position of Municipal Grounds Commission 
Member, for term expiring January 9, 2027. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11127 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Thomas Zuppa, to the position of Building Commissioner, for term expiring 
January 9, 2027. 
 
#11128 
 On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, 
 
#11128 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Robert Charland, Esq., to the position of Assistant City Solicitor, for term 
expiring January 1, 2025. 
 
#11129 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Dane Arnold, to the position of Public Works Director, for term expiring 
January 4, 2027. 
 
#11130 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Michael F. Ellis, to the position of Senior Citizen’s Director, for term 
expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11131 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Lynette R. Gabrila, to the position of Veteran’s Agent/Veterans’ Burial 
Agent, for term expiring January 4, 2025. 
 
#11132 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Gregory Lagoy, to the position of Fire Chief, for term expiring January 4, 
2027. 
 
#11133 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Paul Topolski, to the position of Civil Defense Director, for term expiring 
January 4, 2027. 
 
#11134 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 6 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Appointment of Carla J. Wojtukiewcz, to the position of Trustee, Williams-Rockwell 
Educational Gift Fund, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11135 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Robert Rice, Esq., to the position of Trustee, Williams-Rockwell Educational 
Gift Fund, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11136 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Cheryl Slack, to the position of Animal Control Officer, for term expiring 
January 4, 2025. 
 
#11137 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Autumn Brown, to the position of Animal Control Officer, for term expiring 
January 4, 2025. 
 
#11138 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Alana Meserve, to the position of Animal Control Officer, for term expiring 
January 4, 2025. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 7 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11139 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Robert Bettez, to the position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring 
January 4, 2027. 
 
#11140 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Robert Swartz, to the position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring 
January 4, 2027. 
 
#11141 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Stephen Cormier, to the position of Planning Board Member, for term 
expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11142 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Charles LeBlanc, to the position of Board of Assessors, for term expiring 
January 4, 2027. 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 8 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11143 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Rick Germano, to the position of Local Inspector, for term expiring January 
4, 2027. 
 
#11144 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of James E. Imprescia, to the position of Plumbing & Gas Inspector, for term 
expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11145 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Michael Fitzsimmons, to the position of License Commission Member, for 
term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11146 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Kenneth Arsenault, to the position of License Commission Member, for 
term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 9 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11147 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Nancy Binder, to the position of License Commission Member, for term 
expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11148 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Ann Twohig, to the position of Golf Commission Member, for term expiring 
January 4, 2027. 
 
#11149 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Kathy O’Brien, to the position of Council on Aging Member, for term 
expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11150 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Timothy Horrigan, to the position of Redevelopment Authority, for term 
expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 10 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11151 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Theresa Hillman, to the position of Council on Aging Member, for term 
expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11152 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Gloria Tarpey, to the position of Council on Aging Member, for term 
expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11153 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Susan Avallone, RN, to the position of Board of Health Member, for term 
expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11154 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Geoffrey Tobia, to the position of Board of Health Member, for term 
expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 11 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11155 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Michele Parker, to the position of MD, Board of Health Member, for term 
expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11156 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Marcelle S. Cormier, to the position of Board of Registrar Member, for term 
expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11157 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Patricia Darby, to the position of Board of Registrar Member, for term 
expiring January 9, 2027. 
 
#11158 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to refer to 
Finance Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Kevin McInerney, to the position of Contributory Retirement Board, for 
term expiring January 11, 2027. 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 12 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
COMMUNICATIONS 

#11119 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it 
was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to place on file, Notice of 
Appointment of Rachel J. Roberts, to the position of Executive Secretary, for term expiring 
January 1, 2025. 
 
#11120 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, it 
was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on file, Notice of 
Appointment of John M. Flick, to the position of City Solicitor, for term expiring January 1, 
2025. 
 
#11121 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor David Thibault-
Muñoz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 
Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, 
Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on file, Notice 
of Appointment of Kevin J. Arsenault, to the position of Constable, for term expiring January 
1, 2027. 
 
#11122 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on 
file, Notice of Appointment of Gloria Tarpey, to the position of President of Golden Agers 
Club, for term expiring January 8, 2025. 
 
#11123 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 13 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on 
file, Notice of Appointment of Theresa Hillman, to the position of Gardner Community 
Action Board of Directors Member, for term expiring January 4, 2025. 
 
#11159 
On a motion made by Councillor Dana Heath and seconded by Councillor David Thibault-
Muñoz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 
Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, 
Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on file, A 
Notification from the Mayor Regarding Submission of Inaugural Address. 
 
#11160 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Paul 
Tassone, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 
Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, 
Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on file, A 
Notification from the Mayor Regarding the FY2025 Budget Process. 
 
#11161 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on 
file, A Notification from the Mayor Regarding the City Code Review. 
 
#11162 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 
George Tyros, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on 
file, A Notification from the Mayor Regarding the Bus Shelter/Stop Proposal. 
 
#11163 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on 
file, A Notification from the Mayor Regarding Updates to Municipal Finance Law. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 14 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11164 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor David 
Thibault-Muñoz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on 
file, A Notification from the Mayor Regarding Change in Regulations for Communities 
Designated as Green Communities. 
 
#11165 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on 
file, A Notification from the Mayor Regarding Increased Chapter 90 Funding Received from 
Commonwealth. 
 
#11166 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 
George Tyros, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on 
file, A Notification from the Mayor Regarding Updated Road Priority List and Rating 
Methodology. 
 
#11167 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on 
file, A Notification from the Mayor Regarding Recent Grants Received by the City. 
 
#11168 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor David 
Thibault-Muñoz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on 
file, A Notification from the Mayor Regarding 9C Cuts in State Budget. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 15 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11169 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on 
file, A Notification from the Mayor Regarding Update Related to the On-Street Parking Ban 
issued from January 6th through January 8th. 
 
#11170 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it 
was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to place on file, A 
Notification from the Mayor Regarding Notices of Vacancy in Appointed Positions. 

 
PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 

#11117 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, 
it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to GRANT an Application 
for Motor Vehicle Dealers License, Class II, Sylvester R. Anghuy, 146 Sherman Street. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
#11086 
Councillor Craig Cormier informed the Council that the Deputy Chief and the DPW are 
working on a 60 day trial basis, he requested MORE TIME on An Ordinance to Amend the 
Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled 
“Parking Prohibited on Certain Streets” – Comee Street. 
 
There were no objections, more time was granted. 
 
#11115 
Councillor Craig Cormier informed the Council that Deputy Chief and the DPW are 
working on implementing a 60-day trial basis and requested MORE TIME on An Ordinance 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 16 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, 
Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on Certain Streets.” – Douglas Road. 
 
There were no objections, more time was granted. 
 
#11116 
Councillor Craig Cormier informed the Council that they can not approve this license at the 
time because of some issues that they are looking to get more information on regarding the 
property being behind on the water bills  and another matter. Councillor Craig Cormier 
requested MORE TIME on an Application for Motor Vehicle Dealers License, Class II, 
Gardner Five Star Auto Sales, 407 Chestnut Street. 
 
There were no objections, more time was granted. 
 

UNFINISTHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 

#11112 
President Kazinskas informed the Council that there was a Joint Public Hearing earlier this 
evening.  By state statute, the next step of the process is to have the final recommendation 
submitted from the Planning Board to the City Council. The President requested MORE 
TIME on – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, 
entitled “Zoning,” to Add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses. 
 
There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 
#11113 
President Kazinskas informed the Council that there was a Joint Public Hearing earlier this 
evening.  By state statute, the next step of the process is to have the final recommendation 
submitted from the Planning Board to the City Council. The President requested MORE 
TIME on – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, 
entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments” to 
Change the Method to Increase the Quota Allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner. 
 
There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS AND REMARKS 
 
Councillor Ronald Cormier would like to welcome Councillor Calvin Brooks to the City 
Council. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 17 of 17 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Councillor Paul Tassone would also like to welcome Councillor Calvin Brooks to the City 
Council. He also mentioned that SoMax Hydrothermal will be having a presentation on 
Thursday, January 18th at the Beagle Club, located on Clark Street. 
 
Councillor Dana Heath also welcomes Councillor Calvin Brooks to the City Council. He 
would also like to thank the DPW for the work done over the snow storm. 
 
Councillor Calvin Brooks chose to stand and speak for the first time to the public during his 
remarks to pay homage to City Councillors who preceded him. He read a speech and would 
like to thank the City Council for appointing him. He looks forward to working with 
everyone moving forward. Mr. Brooks would also like to recognize his family throughout 
this process. 
 
President Elizabeth would also like to welcome Mr. Brooks and congratulations. 
 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion by Councillor Paul Tassone and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig 
Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Paul 
Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to adjourn at 7:58 p.m. 
 
 

Accepted by the City Council:   



 
JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 1 of 3 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Tuesday evening, January 16, 2024.  The Joint Public Hearing of the City Council and Planning 
Board, held in the City Council Chamber, was called to order by Council President Elizabeth 
Kazinskas at 6:45 o’clock p.m. for the purposed amendment involves changing the zoning of:  
 

• 11112 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, 
entitled “Zoning,” to Add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses.  
 

• 11113 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, 
entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana 
Establishments” to Change the Method to Increase the Quota Allowed by the Code of 
the City of Gardner.  

 
City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll.  Present were: 
 
Members of the City Council (9) 
 Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, President   

Craig R. Cormier 
 Ronald F. Cormier 
 Aleksander H. Dernalowicz 
 Karen G. Hardern 

Dana M. Heath 
Paul G. Tassone 
David Thibault-Muñoz 
George C. Tyros 
 
 

Councillor Judy Mack was absent. 
 
Planning Board member Paul Cormier was absent. 
 
Others present, Trevor Beauregard, Community Development and Planning Director. 
 

 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas announced Pursuant to G.L. 40A, § 5, notice is hereby given 
that the City Council and Planning Board will conduct a Joint Public Hearing on Tuesday, 
January 16, 2024 at 6:45 P.M. in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City Hall, 95 Pleasant 
Street, Gardner, to consider amending Chapter 675, the Zoning Code of the City of Gardner. 
The proposed Amendment involves changing items: 11112 – An Ordinance to Amend the 
Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Add “Sports Betting” 
to the Zoning Table of Uses; 11113 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of 

Members of the Planning Board (4) 
 Robert J. Bettez   

Stephen E. Cormier 
Mark M. Schafron 
Robert J. Swartz 



 
JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 2 of 3 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, 
“Marijuana Establishments” to Change the Method to Increase the Quota Allowed by the 
Code of the City of Gardner.  
 
Information regarding this amendment is available for viewing in the City Clerk’s Office, the 
Department of Community Development and Planning (DCDP), or on the City’s webpage – 
www.gardner-ma.gov. All persons interested in this matter and desire to offer testimony are 
invited to attend the hearing. 
 
#11112 - An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, 
entitled “Zoning,” to Add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses. 
Community Development & Planning Director, Trevor Beauregard informed the Committee 
and Council that the Planning Board that there was a planning board meeting on January 9th 
and the board unanimously voted recommend adoption of the ordinance with two 
amendments. One of the amendments would include a special permit by the planning board 
and to change some language identified in the packet with recommendations made last year 
in February when this was first presented to the City Council and Planning Board. 
 
President Kazinskas opened the Public Hearing at 6:51 p.m. and announced thrice if anyone 
would like to speak in favor. 
 
No one spoke in favor. 
 
President Kazinskas announced thrice if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the 
amendment. 
 
Paul DeMeo, 9 Willis Road, Gardner, MA,  spoke in opposotion. He stated that this hearing is 
illegal because it does not follow Chapter 40a, section 5. It did not go through the proper 
procedures of Mass General Laws. 
 
Director Beaurgard mentioned that the Planning Board is in favor of the recommendation 
from the Building Commissioner to identify the new zoning sports betting in the table of 
uses on its own with a definition section of the ordinance rather than combining it with 
existing usues within the table of uses. 
 
James Clume, 72 Main Street, was inquiring about the 24 hour nature of the gambling 
facility. 
 



 
JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF JANUARY 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 3 of 3 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Councillor Dernalowicz responded that this is just a zoning, defining the zones. There is no 
sports facitlity on the property. 
 
#11113 - An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, 
entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments” to 
Change the Method to Increase the Quota Allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner. 
Community Development & Planning Director, Trevor Beauregard informed the Committee 
and Council that the Planning Board that the Planning Board met on January 9, 2024 and 
voted unanimously 5-0 to recommend adoption of the amendment. 
 
President Kazinskas announced thrice if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
amendment. 
 
No one spoke. 
 
President Kazinskas announced thrice if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the 
amendment.  
 
Paul DeMeo, 9 Willis Road, Gardner, MA, spoke in opposition and stated that his hearing is 
illegal because it does not comply with Chapter 40a, section 5 of Mass General Laws. He said 
that if this passes, he will be filing a complaint with the Attorney Generals Office. He has “no 
clue” why the city is looking to increase marijuana licenses. Former Mayor Hawke signed a 
community host agreement with Sanctuary Medicinals to not approve any further registered 
marijuana dispensary facilities within the City of Gardner after the date of this agreement. 
 
The public hearing closed at 7:05 p.m. 
 
Accepted by the City Council:   
 



11255



11252



11252



11252



11252



11252



11252



11252



11252



11252



11252



11253



11253



11253



11253



11253



11253



11253



11253



11253



11253



11253



11253



11253



11254





MARCH 14, 2024

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
Worcester County     City of Gardner 

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION 
We elect Titi Siriphan, to the position of City Clerk and certify that in our opinion she is a person specially 
fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the duties of said office, and that we make the 
appointment solely in the interests of the City. 

______________________________ 

President, City Council of Gardner 

Elected by City Council _________________________ 

Term of Office Effective _________________________ 

____________________________ 

Titi Siriphan, City Clerk 
Expires March 14, 2027. 

 Worcester, ss., ______________________ 2024 

Then personally appeared the above named TITI SIRIPHAN and made oath that she would faithfully 

and impartially perform the duties of the office of  CITY CLERK according to law and the best of her 

abilities.    Before me, 

   ____________________________________ 
Justice of the Peace 

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975 
and  
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983 

Received _____________________________ 

11212



11214



11214



Mission Statement 
To promote the safe and compatible development of the community through fair and consistent enforcement of 

 building codes and zoning ordinances 

City of Gardner 
Department of Inspectional Services 

115 Pleasant Street, Room 101  
Gardner, MA 01440 

Tel. (978) 630-4007   Fax: (978) 632-3313 
d

April 11, 2024 

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President 
And City Councilors  
Gardner City Hall, Rm. 121  
95 Pleasant St.  
Gardner, MA 01440  

RE: Item #11214- An Order Transferring $42,000 from Building Clerk Salaries and Wages to Operation 
Expenditures 

Dear Madam President and Councilors, 

Per Councilor Dernalowicz’ request at the April 10, 2024 Finance Committee Meeting, I am writing to provide 
a breakdown of the cost to appropriately outfit the city of Gardner Building Department with the required 
equipment, code books and training material.   
As mentioned in my presentation, moving forward now with these long overdue, much needed and required 
improvements will provide the building department with the necessary capabilities to protect and serve all 
visitors, residents and first responders of the city of Gardner for the next 8-10 years.  

• Cost to upfit four code enforcement vehicles: Approximately $24,000 
The cost includes the purchase of all required equipment, installation, and a comprehensive 3yr. 
warranty on all components. Additionally, as we look to begin replacing vehicles in the next 3 years, all 
installed components will easily transfer to the new vehicles saving on future upfitting costs. 

• Cost to purchase required code books.  Approximately $4000
The state of Massachusetts will be adopting the 2021 code cycle at a point later this year and all new
code books, referenced standards, installation guidelines, training materials, and law books will need to
be purchased.  This investment will provide the inspectors of the building department with the required
materials and tools to perform their jobs at the highest level for an estimated 9 years.

• The remaining funds along with some existing funds will be used to pay Otis elevator, repair the city
hall flag pole, and perform maintenance on the city hall entrance way and walkways.

11214



 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 

 

Thomas Zuppa, C.B.O. 
Building Commissioner 
Zoning Enforcement Officer 
City of Gardner Building Department 
Phone: 978-630-4060  
Email: tzuppa@gardner-ma.gov 
115 Pleasant St. Rm. 101 Gardner, MA 01440  
 
  

 

 
C: Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 
      



11215



11215



11215



11215



11216



11216



11236



11236



11236



11237



11237



11237



11238



11238



11238



11239



11239



11217



11217



11217



11217



11218



11218



11218



11218



11219



11219



11219



11219



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11243



11244



11244



From: Mayor
To: Elizabeth Kazinskas
Cc: Titi Siriphan; Byron Woodman
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Gardner Solar
Date: Monday, April 8, 2024 4:48:19 PM
Attachments: image.png

image.png
24.03.27 Gardner Solar Presentation.pdf

Good Afternoon Madam President and Finance Committee Members,

The attached and below presentations have been put together by the City’s Solar consultant, Byron Woodman, with regard to the items that are before the Committee for
review and recommendation to the City Council at this Wednesday morning’s meeting.

While the majority of this information is included in your packets, I wanted to be sure to include all of it for your review and consideration before this meeting.

See you Wednesday at 8am.

Best,

Mike Nicholson

From: Byron Woodman <bwoodman@solect.com>
Sent: Wednesday, March 27, 2024 8:04 AM
To: Mayor <Mayor@gardner-ma.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Gardner Solar

Hi Mike, 

Good morning. Please note the approximate square footage for each of the roofs, below. I have included the overall area of the roof and the specific
measurements for the solar footprint as well. 

In terms of the roof protection, Solect is required to maintain the roof warranty throughout the term.  Please note the specific language from the lease below.  

Regarding the roof upgrades, Solect has previously provided upgrades to roofs to enable solar to proceed. The price over the roof would be included in the
project capital cost. Once the work is complete, the system will be installed, and the additional cost will be included in the PPA rate.  This option will be
evaluated on a case-by-case basis. We would also need to coordinate with the City regarding the timeline for the payment to the City and installation etc.

I am also updating the slides this morning for inclusion in the packet. If you have any questions, I can be contacted by cell: 339-203-5530.

Best,
Byron

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250

mailto:Mayor@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:tsiriphan@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:bwoodman@solect.com
mailto:bwoodman@solect.com
mailto:Mayor@gardner-ma.gov





City of Gardner
Solar Energy Presentation


March 28, 2023







Agenda


o The PowerOptions and Solect Solar & Storage Program


o The Massachusetts SMART incentive program


o City of Gardner Solar Locations for Review


o Overview of Due Diligence & Engineering


o Next Steps


o Questions and next steps







3


PowerOptions


o PowerOptions is a nonprofit energy buying consortium that delivers cost savings and predictability to


nonprofits and the public sector in Massachusetts, Connecticut and Rhode Island.


o PowerOptions performs competitive RFPs on behalf of its members, to provide energy solutions.


Solect has been awarded the solar and storage program. Public entities can leverage the


PowerOptions RFP in lieu of conducting individual solicitations, and comply with state regulations


(M.G.L. Ch. 164 S. 137).


o Solect develops, finances, installs and manages solar and storage PPAs for municipalities, schools,


state agencies and nonprofits using pre-negotiated contract templates. Pricing reflects the


purchasing power of the consortium.


o PowerOptions serves as the member advocate and advisor to support members decisions on


contracting with providers under its programs.


o Poweroptions.org







4


o Founded in 2009, Headquarters in Hopkinton, MA


o Develop, Finance, Design, Build, Operate, Service Solar and Energy 


Storage in MA, RI, CT


o 95+ MA employees 


o 700+ commercial projects, 130+MW to date


o Solect Services manages 700+ projects in MA, RI, CT


o 100+ PPAs completed with Public and Not for Profit clients under the 


PowerOptions RFP Award and Standard Contracts


o DCAMM Certified 


o Solect.com







5


The PowerOptions Solect Solar Program


o No upfront cost & no maintenance responsibilities 


o Solect to install, finance, operate, maintain system


o 20-Year Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs)


o Fixed per-kWh price for 20 years
• Monetizes federal and state incentives


• Savings plus hedge against volatile electricity market


o PPA Pricing pre-negotiated with strength of PowerOptions consortium


o Contract templates (PPA, Lease) negotiated under the RFP


o PowerOptions as advisor, advocate, facilitator







6


Gardner Solar – Installation & PPA Process


o Solect will develop, install and service the projects


o Solect will perform all of the solar work, including electric and 


structural engineering, utility applications and interconnections, 


construction drawings, permitting, provide all materials, installations, 


system Q/A and commissioning, inspections, and turn the system on.


o Operations period will commence – 20 years for roofs, 25 for canopies


o Solect Services will provide a safety walk through and provide a 


convenient project reference guide for the City of Salem.  Solect will 


monitor and service all systems from the Hopkinton operations center. 







7


Gardner Solar Overview
Power Purchase Agreement Options – Preliminary Pricing


Location System Size
PPA Rate
Block 10


PPA Rate
Block 11


Total Savings
Block 10


Total Savings
Block 11 Notes / Actions Required


New Community 
Center 373.9 .14 .144 $646,000 $613,000


- Needs New Roof & 
Structural


City Hall - Roof 100.8 .18 .187 $208,375 $193,000
- Confirm specs re: existing 


system


City Hall - Canopy 249.6 .22 .225 $265,000 $231,000
- Confirm Incentives & 


Feasibility
Gardner 


Elementary School 372 .122 .126 $836,000 $803,000
- School Committee for 


Approval


DPW – 50 Manca 159.8 .145 .18 $262,000 $244,000
- Confirm RPT
- Incentives & Feasibility


Fire Station 61.4 .172 .177 $46,000 $39,000
- Confirm Incentives & 


Feasibility


Capital Purchase Option


Location System Size Total Price
Federal 
Credit Total Savings - Block 11 Notes / Actions Required


New Community 
Center 373.9 $856,000 $256,800 $1,569,000


- Needs New Roof & Structural
- 30% Credit Pending Regulatory 


approval & project qualification
- Assumes Zero interest – Cash on Cash


Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering. Additional sites


may also be considered.







8


City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations


Gardner New Community Center – 373.9kW City Hall – 100.8kW


Note: Assumes new roof







9


City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations


Gardner DPW (South) – 68.6kWGardner DPW (North) – 91.2kW







10


City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations


City Hall Canopy – 249.6kW 416 W. Broadway – 270.2kW







11


City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations


Gardner Elementary School – 372kWGardner Elementary School







12


City of Gardner – Phase 2 - Locations


Crystal Lake Water Treatment FacilityGardner Middle School







13


City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations
DPW – 416 Broadway St. WWTP - Templeton







14


New Community Center - PPA – Annual Savings


Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.







15


Community Center - Capital Purchase Savings Forecast


Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.







16


City Hall Roof – Annual Savings


Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.







17


City Hall - Canopy – Annual Savings


Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.







18


Gardner Elementary School - Roof – Annual Savings


Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.







19


DPW – 50 Manca – Roof – Annual Savings


Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.







20


Fire Station – Roof – Annual Savings


Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.







21


Project Development Due Diligence & Engineering
Upon execution of Agreements, Solect performs all development activities as outlined below.  During 


the development phase, Solect will provide Host with status updates, including any impacts to the 


project feasibility, schedules, and rates.


o INTERCONNECTION AND INCENTIVE PROCESS 


- Prepare electric engineering, submit SMART incentive applications and interconnection 


applications for each site.  Utility response may require engineering studies.


o STRUCTURAL AND SITE FEASIBILITY AND PERMITTING


- Confirm structural feasibility & weight-loading capacity for each building based on the systems 


ballast plan.  


- For canopies, conduct civil engineering and engage the Planning board to gain project approvals.  


o PILOT CONFIRMATION


Execute PILOT agreements







22


Proposal & Next Steps
SIGN LETTER OF INTENT 


• Electric engineering, Utility applications, SMART incentive applications


• Receive utility responses, and complete due diligence


• Contracts Process (PPA, Lease & PILOT)


ROOFTOP SOLAR PROJECT STEPS:


• Construction design, building permit applications


• Pre-construction meetings and tight coordination with facility operations


• On-site Development - Installation and Electric tie-in


• Experience with 550+ installations at all types of buildings and properties


• Local inspections


• Closeout paperwork, Utility meter changes & Permission to Operate


• Solect Services monitoring and maintenance – included in PPA rate for entire term


• Educational Programming – monitoring, curriculum support, events


• Marketing / Communications / PR







Discussion, Questions
Thank you!


Byron Wooodman, Sr. Director Business Development


bwoodman@solect.com


339-203-5530



mailto:bwoodman@solect.com



		Slide 1: City of Gardner Solar Energy Presentation

		Slide 2: Agenda

		Slide 3: PowerOptions

		Slide 4

		Slide 5: The PowerOptions Solect Solar Program

		Slide 6: Gardner Solar – Installation & PPA Process

		Slide 7: Gardner Solar Overview

		Slide 8: City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations

		Slide 9: City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations

		Slide 10: City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations

		Slide 11: City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations

		Slide 12: City of Gardner – Phase 2 - Locations

		Slide 13

		Slide 14: New Community Center - PPA – Annual Savings

		Slide 15: Community Center - Capital Purchase Savings Forecast

		Slide 16: City Hall Roof – Annual Savings

		Slide 17: City Hall - Canopy – Annual Savings

		Slide 18: Gardner Elementary School - Roof – Annual Savings

		Slide 19: DPW – 50 Manca – Roof – Annual Savings

		Slide 20: Fire Station – Roof – Annual Savings

		Slide 21: Project Development Due Diligence & Engineering

		Slide 22: Proposal & Next Steps

		Slide 23: Discussion, Questions Thank you!





City of Gardner
Solar Energy Presentation

March 28, 2023

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



Agenda

o The PowerOptions and Solect Solar & Storage Program

o The Massachusetts SMART incentive program

o City of Gardner Solar Locations for Review

o Overview of Due Diligence & Engineering

o Next Steps

o Questions and next steps

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



3

PowerOptions

o PowerOptions is a nonprofit energy buying consortium that delivers cost savings and predictability to

nonprofits and the public sector in Massachusetts, Connecticut and Rhode Island.

o PowerOptions performs competitive RFPs on behalf of its members, to provide energy solutions.

Solect has been awarded the solar and storage program. Public entities can leverage the

PowerOptions RFP in lieu of conducting individual solicitations, and comply with state regulations

(M.G.L. Ch. 164 S. 137).

o Solect develops, finances, installs and manages solar and storage PPAs for municipalities, schools,

state agencies and nonprofits using pre-negotiated contract templates. Pricing reflects the

purchasing power of the consortium.

o PowerOptions serves as the member advocate and advisor to support members decisions on

contracting with providers under its programs.

o Poweroptions.org

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



4

o Founded in 2009, Headquarters in Hopkinton, MA

o Develop, Finance, Design, Build, Operate, Service Solar and Energy 

Storage in MA, RI, CT

o 95+ MA employees 

o 700+ commercial projects, 130+MW to date

o Solect Services manages 700+ projects in MA, RI, CT

o 100+ PPAs completed with Public and Not for Profit clients under the 

PowerOptions RFP Award and Standard Contracts

o DCAMM Certified 

o Solect.com

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



5

The PowerOptions Solect Solar Program

o No upfront cost & no maintenance responsibilities 

o Solect to install, finance, operate, maintain system

o 20-Year Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs)

o Fixed per-kWh price for 20 years
• Monetizes federal and state incentives

• Savings plus hedge against volatile electricity market

o PPA Pricing pre-negotiated with strength of PowerOptions consortium

o Contract templates (PPA, Lease) negotiated under the RFP

o PowerOptions as advisor, advocate, facilitator

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



6

Gardner Solar – Installation & PPA Process

o Solect will develop, install and service the projects

o Solect will perform all of the solar work, including electric and 

structural engineering, utility applications and interconnections, 

construction drawings, permitting, provide all materials, installations, 

system Q/A and commissioning, inspections, and turn the system on.

o Operations period will commence – 20 years for roofs, 25 for canopies

o Solect Services will provide a safety walk through and provide a 

convenient project reference guide for the City of Salem.  Solect will 

monitor and service all systems from the Hopkinton operations center. 

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



7

Gardner Solar Overview
Power Purchase Agreement Options – Preliminary Pricing

Location System Size
PPA Rate
Block 10

PPA Rate
Block 11

Total Savings
Block 10

Total Savings
Block 11 Notes / Actions Required

New Community 
Center 373.9 .14 .144 $646,000 $613,000

- Needs New Roof & 
Structural

City Hall - Roof 100.8 .18 .187 $208,375 $193,000
- Confirm specs re: existing 

system

City Hall - Canopy 249.6 .22 .225 $265,000 $231,000
- Confirm Incentives & 

Feasibility
Gardner 

Elementary School 372 .122 .126 $836,000 $803,000
- School Committee for 

Approval

DPW – 50 Manca 159.8 .145 .18 $262,000 $244,000
- Confirm RPT
- Incentives & Feasibility

Fire Station 61.4 .172 .177 $46,000 $39,000
- Confirm Incentives & 

Feasibility

Capital Purchase Option

Location System Size Total Price
Federal 
Credit Total Savings - Block 11 Notes / Actions Required

New Community 
Center 373.9 $856,000 $256,800 $1,569,000

- Needs New Roof & Structural
- 30% Credit Pending Regulatory 

approval & project qualification
- Assumes Zero interest – Cash on Cash

Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering. Additional sites

may also be considered.

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



8

City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations

Gardner New Community Center – 373.9kW City Hall – 100.8kW

Note: Assumes new roof

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



9

City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations

Gardner DPW (South) – 68.6kWGardner DPW (North) – 91.2kW

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



10

City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations

City Hall Canopy – 249.6kW 416 W. Broadway – 270.2kW

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



11

City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations

Gardner Elementary School – 372kWGardner Elementary School

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



12

City of Gardner – Phase 2 - Locations

Crystal Lake Water Treatment FacilityGardner Middle School

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



13

City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations
DPW – 416 Broadway St. WWTP - Templeton

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



14

New Community Center - PPA – Annual Savings

Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



15

Community Center - Capital Purchase Savings Forecast

Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



16

City Hall Roof – Annual Savings

Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



17

City Hall - Canopy – Annual Savings

Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



18

Gardner Elementary School - Roof – Annual Savings

Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



19

DPW – 50 Manca – Roof – Annual Savings

Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



20

Fire Station – Roof – Annual Savings

Note: Final locations and prices are subject to final feasibility studies and engineering.

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



21

Project Development Due Diligence & Engineering
Upon execution of Agreements, Solect performs all development activities as outlined below.  During 

the development phase, Solect will provide Host with status updates, including any impacts to the 

project feasibility, schedules, and rates.

o INTERCONNECTION AND INCENTIVE PROCESS 

- Prepare electric engineering, submit SMART incentive applications and interconnection 

applications for each site.  Utility response may require engineering studies.

o STRUCTURAL AND SITE FEASIBILITY AND PERMITTING

- Confirm structural feasibility & weight-loading capacity for each building based on the systems 

ballast plan.  

- For canopies, conduct civil engineering and engage the Planning board to gain project approvals.  

o PILOT CONFIRMATION

Execute PILOT agreements

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



22

Proposal & Next Steps
SIGN LETTER OF INTENT 

• Electric engineering, Utility applications, SMART incentive applications

• Receive utility responses, and complete due diligence

• Contracts Process (PPA, Lease & PILOT)

ROOFTOP SOLAR PROJECT STEPS:

• Construction design, building permit applications

• Pre-construction meetings and tight coordination with facility operations

• On-site Development - Installation and Electric tie-in

• Experience with 550+ installations at all types of buildings and properties

• Local inspections

• Closeout paperwork, Utility meter changes & Permission to Operate

• Solect Services monitoring and maintenance – included in PPA rate for entire term

• Educational Programming – monitoring, curriculum support, events

• Marketing / Communications / PR

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250



Discussion, Questions
Thank you!

Byron Wooodman, Sr. Director Business Development

bwoodman@solect.com

339-203-5530

11244; 11245;11246; 11247; 11248; 11249; 11250

mailto:bwoodman@solect.com


11244



11244



11244



11244



11244



11244



11245



11245



11245



11245



11245



11245



11245



11246



11246



11246



11246



11246



11246



11247



11247



11247



11247



11247



11247



11247



11248



11248



11248



11248



11248



11248



11248



11249



11249



11249



11249



11249



11249



11250



11250



11250



11250



11250



11250



11127



11139



11140



11141



11142



11143



11144



11150



11207



AN ORDINACNE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED 
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 24, ENTITLED “PARKING PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS” 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1: Sec�on 24, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Gardner, en�tled “Parking 
Prohibited on Certain Streets” by amended by adding the following 
 
Name of Street  Side   Loca�on 
Comee St   West   En�re Length 
Comee St   East   From Pearl Street southerly for a distance  

of 30 feet 



CITY OF GARDNER POLICE DEPARTMENT 
200 Main Street ֱ• Gardner, Massachusetts 01440 

                                      Emergency-Dial 911 
  Main line: (978) 632-5600 
Fax Line: (978) 630-4027 

 

 

 

TRAFFIC COMMISSION - MEETING MINUTES 

Date: Thursday August 10,2023       Time: 10am 

Location: Community Classroom, GPD 

 

Provided by Dept. Chief of Police Nick Maroni 

 

1. Members in attendance:  Call to Order: 10:03 am by D.C. Nicholas Maroni 

Dane Arnold – Director of DPW 

Rob Oliva – City Engineer 

Josh Cormier – Director of Civil Enforcement 

Craig Cormier – Councilor at large  

 

Member(s) not in attendance- Trevor Beauregard 

 

2. Waive reading / acceptance of meeting minutes from April 24,2023  

 

a. Motion by Dane, 2nd by Rob, All in favor – Unanimous.  

 

3. Rob- updated on flashing school zone signs on Catherine St 

 

a. Future updates to city ordinance to define current school zones. 

 

4. Gardner ale house renting a parking spot on parker St to designate as Pick up parking. 

a. Josh- if allowed would this cause other businesses to ask too. 

b. Dane-not in favor, large parking area behind business and across the street 

c. Nick- limited parking already in the downtown area 

d. Dane motion to not allow pick up parking for all of downtown, Rob 2nd, unanimous vote. 

 

5. Pedestrian traffic concerns with new Tap House going in at Bullnose Park. 

a. Rob- ask Tap house to help enhance crosswalks in area, flashing lights, push button to activate when 

pedestrians cross. Recommends city work with building owner to install flashing lights 

 

6. New School Traffic and speeding on Catherine St.  

a. Dane worked with school on new traffic pattern for drop off and pick up that should cut down on traffic. 

Tabled until start of school to see how it works. 

 

7. Eliminate Parking Spot on Central St near the cross walk at Lake St on the Southwest travel side of Central St so 

pedestrians can be seen by motor vehicles.  

a. Dane motioned, Josh 2nd All in Favor-Unanimous 

b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee  

 

8. Remove handicap spot in front of 144 Central St and recommend city council to approve new Handicap spots on 

Central St at Monument Park.  

a. Dane motioned, Josh 2nd, all in favor, unanimous. 

b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee 

c. Let property owner know about removing Handicap spot in front of 144 Central. 

 

11086



9. Eliminate parking spot in front of crosswalk on west bound side of East Broadway at Prospect St so motor vehicles

can see pedestrians in the cross walk.

a. Dane motioned, Rob 2nd all in favor, unanimous.

b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee.

10. New Business

a. Rob suggested making whole length of westside of Comee St no parking and making no parking 30 ft

from stop sign on east side heading from Pearl St

i. Dane motioned, Josh 2nd all in favor, unanimous will be forwarded to public safety committee.

b. Speeding on Elm St & Lawrence St, request more enforcement with school starting.

c. Craig asked about speeding issues on Chesley St

i. Nick stated Officers did enforcement in that area and we have not received any further complaints.

Conclusion: At 10:56 am Dane made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Craig 

All in favor - Unanimous 

Next Traffic Committee Meeting Schedule: TBD 

11086

tsiriphan
Highlight

tsiriphan
Highlight

tsiriphan
Highlight



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED 
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 24, ENTITLED “PARKING PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS” 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Sec�on 24, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Gardner, en�tled “Parking 
Prohibited on Certain Streets” be amended by adding the following 

Name of Street Side Loca�on 
Douglas Rd  South From Coleman Street westerly for a distance 

of 30 feet 

11115



CITY OF GARDNER POLICE DEPARTMENT 
200 Main Street 

Gardner, MA 01440 
Phone (978) 632-5600 

Fax (978) 630-9045 

Eric P. McAvene       Nicholas P. Maroni 
Chief of Police  Deputy Chief of Police 

Date: 12/5/2023 

To Councilor Cormier, Committee Chairman, and members of the Public Safety Committee, 

The Traffic Committee met on November 28,2023 and discussed a few changes and 

recommendations to increase the safety of the City’s roadways. The following are the changes 

and recommendations the Traffic Committee voted on, unanimously (6 of 6) to send to the 

Public Safety Committee for review.  

1. City Ordinance change to §600-24 (Parking prohibited on certain Streets) due to parking

spots being eliminated by new construction around Monument Park.

Name of Street  Side  Location 

Park Street   South  From Cottage Street to Central St 

2. Temporary 60 Day restricted parking trial on the North side of Edgell St to Westford St.

3. Recommended eliminating parking 30 ft southerly side of Douglas Rd.

The commission appreciates your attention to these matters and members can be made available 

if further clarification is needed. Photos of the proposed areas have been attached.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Nicholas Maroni 

Deputy Chief of Police/ Traffic Committee Commissioner 

CC: Traffic Commission members, City Clerk 

11115



11115



11115



11115



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED 
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 24, ENTITLED “PARKING PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS” 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Sec�on 24, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Gardner, en�tled “Parking 
Prohibited on Certain Streets” be amended by adding the following 

Name of Street Side Loca�on 
Edgell Street  North From Elm Street to Lawrence Street 

11204



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11220



11220



11220



11232



11232



11232



11232



11233



11233



11233



11233



11234


	01-02-2024 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.
	#11116

	01-16-2024 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	#11171
	A Notice from the City Clerk Relative to a Vacancy in the Position of Councillor at Large, was taken out of order.
	On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, it was voted viva voce, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heat...
	Councillor Calvin D. Brooks
	147 Elm Street
	Gardner, MA  01440
	Dear Councillor Brooks:
	At a legal meeting of the inhabitants of the City qualified to vote in elections held in their Wards on Tuesday, the 7th day of November 2023, and per the provisions of the City Charter you were elected Councillor at Large for Two Years beginning the ...
	Accordingly, as prescribed by the Charter of the City of Gardner, the Oath of Office for the faithful perfomance of duties will be administered on TUESDAY, the 16TH Day of  JANUARY, 2024 at 7:30 P.M. in the City Council Chamber.
	Very truly yours,
	TITI SIRIPHAN
	City Clerk
	A brief recess was taken 7:33 p.m. for the City Clerk to administer the oath of office to Calvin D. Brooks.
	Meeting resumed, 7:35 p.m.
	COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR
	ORDERS
	#11118
	On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz,...
	#11125
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11126
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11127
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11128
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, ...
	#11128
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11129
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11130
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11131
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11132
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11133
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11134
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11135
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11136
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11137
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11138
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11139
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11140
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11141
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11142
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11143
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11144
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11145
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11146
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11147
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11148
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11149
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11150
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11151
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11152
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11153
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11154
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11155
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11156
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11157
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11158
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR
	COMMUNICATIONS
	#11119
	On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hard...
	#11120
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Harde...
	#11121
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor David Thibault-Muñoz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Kar...
	#11122
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11123
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11159
	On a motion made by Councillor Dana Heath and seconded by Councillor David Thibault-Muñoz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen...
	#11160
	On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11161
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11162
	On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11163
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11164
	On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor David Thibault-Muñoz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernal...
	#11165
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11166
	On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11167
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11168
	On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor David Thibault-Muñoz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernal...
	#11169
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, K...
	#11170
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern...
	PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.
	#11117
	On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Har...

	1-16-2024 Joint Public Hearing w Planning Board Minutes.pdf
	City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll.  Present were:
	Members of the City Council (9)
	Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, President
	Craig R. Cormier
	Ronald F. Cormier
	Aleksander H. Dernalowicz
	Karen G. Hardern
	Dana M. Heath
	Paul G. Tassone
	David Thibault-Muñoz
	George C. Tyros
	Councillor Judy Mack was absent.
	Planning Board member Paul Cormier was absent.
	Others present, Trevor Beauregard, Community Development and Planning Director.
	Members of the Planning Board (4)
	Robert J. Bettez
	Stephen E. Cormier
	Mark M. Schafron
	Robert J. Swartz
	Paul DeMeo, 9 Willis Road, Gardner, MA, spoke in opposition and stated that his hearing is illegal because it does not comply with Chapter 40a, section 5 of Mass General Laws. He said that if this passes, he will be filing a complaint with the Attorne...
	The public hearing closed at 7:05 p.m.

	Solar Photovoltaic Array Presentation.pdf
	24.03.27 Gardner Solar Presentation.pdf
	Slide 1: City of Gardner Solar Energy Presentation
	Slide 2: Agenda
	Slide 3: PowerOptions
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: The PowerOptions Solect Solar Program
	Slide 6: Gardner Solar – Installation & PPA Process
	Slide 7: Gardner Solar Overview
	Slide 8: City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations
	Slide 9: City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations
	Slide 10: City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations
	Slide 11: City of Gardner - Solar Rooftop Locations
	Slide 12: City of Gardner – Phase 2 - Locations
	Slide 13
	Slide 14: New Community Center - PPA – Annual Savings
	Slide 15: Community Center - Capital Purchase Savings Forecast
	Slide 16: City Hall Roof – Annual Savings
	Slide 17: City Hall - Canopy – Annual Savings
	Slide 18: Gardner Elementary School - Roof – Annual Savings
	Slide 19: DPW – 50 Manca – Roof – Annual Savings
	Slide 20: Fire Station – Roof – Annual Savings
	Slide 21: Project Development Due Diligence & Engineering
	Slide 22: Proposal & Next Steps
	Slide 23: Discussion, Questions Thank you!





